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Item 1.  Reports to Stockholders.
The following is a copy of the report transmitted to stockholders pursuant to Rule 30e-1 under the Act (17 CFR 270.30e-1):
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Semi-Annual Report

August 31, 2011
ING Global Advantage and

Premium Opportunity Fund

E-Delivery Sign-up details inside

This report is submitted for general information to shareholders of the ING Funds. It is not authorized for distribution to prospective shareholders unless
accompanied or preceded by a prospectus which includes details regarding the fund s investment objectives, risks, charges, expenses and other information. This
information should be read carefully.

FUNDS
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Go Paperless with E-Delivery!
Sign up now for on-line prospectuses, fund reports, and proxy statements. In less than five minutes, you can help reduce paper
mail and lower fund costs.

Just go to www.ingfunds.com, click on the E-Delivery icon from the home page, follow the directions and complete the quick 5
Steps to Enroll.

You will be notified by e-mail when these communications become available on the internet. Documents that are not available on
the internet will continue to be sent by mail.

PROXY VOTING INFORMATION

A description of the policies and procedures that the Fund uses to determine how to vote proxies related to portfolio securities is available:

(1) without charge, upon request, by calling Shareholder Services toll-free at (800) 992-0180; (2) on the ING Funds website at
www.ingfunds.com; and (3) on the SEC s website at www.sec.gov. Information regarding how the Fund voted proxies related to portfolio
securities during the most recent 12-month period ended June 30 is available without charge on the ING Funds website at www.ingfunds.com
and on the SEC s website at www.sec.gov.

QUARTERLY PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS

The Fund files its complete schedule of portfolio holdings with the SEC for the first and third quarters of each fiscal year on Form N-Q. This
report contains a summary portfolio of investments for the Fund. The Fund s Forms N-Q are available on the SEC s website at www.sec.gov. The
Fund s Forms N-Q may be reviewed and copied at the SEC s Public Reference Room in Washington, DC, and information on the operation of the
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Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling (800) SEC-0330. The Fund s Forms N-Q, as well as a complete portfolio of investments, are
available without charge upon request from the Fund by calling Shareholder Services toll-free at (800) 992-0180.
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PRESIDENT S LETTER

Dear Shareholder,

ING Global Advantage and Premium Opportunity Fund (the Fund ) is a diversified, closed end management investment company whose shares
are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol IGA. The primary objective of the Fund is to provide a high level of income, with
a secondary objective of capital appreciation.

The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objectives by investing at least 80% of its managed assets in a diversified global equity portfolio and
employing an option strategy of writing index call options equivalent to a significant portion of its equity portfolio. The Fund also hedges most
of its foreign currency exposure to reduce volatility of total returns.

For the six months ended August 31, 2011, the Fund made quarterly distributions totaling $0.67 per share, all characterized as net investment
income.

Based on net asset value ( NAV ), the Fund provided a total return of (8.68)% for the six months ended August 31, 2041 This NAV return
reflects a decrease in the Fund s NAV from $13.76 on February 28, 2011 to $11.95 on August 31, 2011, including the reinvestment of $0.67 per
share in distributions. Based on its share price, the Fund provided

a total return of (10.26)% for the six months ended August 31, 2011.2 This share price return reflects a decrease in the Fund s share price from
$13.72 on February 28, 2011 to $11.71 on August 31, 2011, including the reinvestment of $0.67 per share in distributions.

The global equity markets have witnessed a challenging and turbulent period. Please read the Market Perspective and Portfolio Managers Report
for more information on the market and the Fund s performance.

At ING Funds our mission is to help you grow, protect and enjoy your wealth. We seek to assist you and your financial advisor by offering a
range of global investment solutions. We invite you to visit our website at www.ingfunds.com. Here you will find information on our products
and services, including current market data and fund statistics on our open- and closed-end funds. You will see that we offer a broad variety of
equity, fixed income and multi-asset funds that aim to fulfill a variety of investor needs.

We thank you for trusting ING Funds with your investment assets, and we look forward to serving you in the months and years ahead.

Sincerely,

Shaun P. Mathews
President & Chief Executive Officer
ING Funds

October 7, 2011
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The views expressed in the President s Letter reflect those of the President as of the date of the letter. Any such views are subject to change at
any time based upon market or other conditions and ING Funds disclaim any responsibility to update such views. These views may not be relied
on as investment advice and because investment decisions for an ING Fund are based on numerous factors, may not be relied on as an indication
of investment intent on behalf of any ING Fund. Reference to specific company securities should not be construed as recommendations or
investment advice. International investing does pose special risks including currency fluctuation, economic and political risks not found in
investments that are solely domestic.

For more complete information, or to obtain a prospectus for any ING Fund, please call your Investment Professional or the Fund s
Shareholder Service Department at (800) 992-0180 or log on to www.ingfunds.com. The prospectus should be read carefully before
investing. Consider the fund s investment objectives, risks, charges and expenses carefully before investing. The prospectus contains this
information and other information about the fund. Check with your Investment Professional to determine which funds are available for
sale within their firm. Not all funds are available for sale at all firms.

(1) Total investment return at net asset value has been calculated assuming a purchase at net asset value at the beginning of each period and a sale at net asset
value at the end of each period and assumes reinvestment of dividends, capital gain distributions and return of capital distributions/allocations, if any, in
accordance with the provisions of the Fund s dividend reinvestment plan.

(2 Total investment return at market value measures the change in the market value of your investment assuming reinvestment of dividends, capital gain
distributions and return of capital distributions/allocations, if any, in accordance with the provisions of the Fund s dividend reinvestment plan.
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MARKET PERSPECTIVE: Six Montas Enpep Aucust 31, 2011

As our new fiscal year started, commentators were wondering what it would take to spoil investors collective appetite for risky assets. Global
equities in the form of the MSCI World Index”™ measured in local currencies including net reinvested dividends were already up nearly 5% in
2011, despite a continuing European sovereign debt crisis and the violent uncertainties of the Arab Spring in North Africa and the Middle East.
As if this were not enough, a massive earthquake and tsunami hit Japan on March 11, causing severe local damage and disruption to global
supplies of electrical and digital components. Yet global equities returned nearly 1% between March 10 and March 31. Many of the developed
world s economies including the US, seemed to be returning to health, boosted by heavy, ongoing doses of stimulative and monetary medicine.

But as the year wore on, the patient took a turn for the worse and by the end of August global equities were down 11.03% for the six month
period. (The MSCI World Index™™ returned (9.21)% for the six-month period, measured in U.S. dollars.)

It did not happen right away. In the U.S., the latest unemployment rate was reported in April at 8.8%, the lowest in 24 months. New private
sector jobs well above 200,000 were added in each of January, February and March. But the average for the next three months slumped to
111,000, just 72,000 including the shrinking government sector. The unemployment rate rebounded to 9.1% and by the end of August the
number of new weekly unemployment claims was still stuck above 400,000.

In the housing market, sales of new and existing homes seemed to be stabilizing at low levels. But by May both were in decline again and that
month the double dip in home prices was confirmed when the S&P/Case-Shiller 20-City Composite Home Price Index was reported as having
fallen below the near term trough recorded in April 2009.

Gross Domestic Product ( GDP ) growth had been reported at 3.1% (quarter-over-quarter, annualized) for the fourth quarter of 2010. On July 29
this was revised down to 2.3%, among other revisions that showed the recession had been deeper and started earlier than previously thought.
Worse, growth in the first quarter of 2011 was a barely perceptible 0.4%. When the next quarter s figure was reported at just 1.0%, the common
assessment was that the economy was operating at stall-speed .

There was to be no cheer on the political front as parties deadlocked on the issue of raising the debt ceiling. A stopgap agreement avoided the
risk of the United States defaulting on its debt, but it did not stop Standard & Poors from downgrading the country s credit rating.

A slowdown of sorts was also taking place in China. Its economy was still growing fast, at 9.5% in the latest quarter, but activity was clearly
slowing at the margin, which would significantly impact global growth. It was a self-inflicted slowdown, as the authorities used monetary
tightening to battle inflation of 6.5% and a housing price bubble. By August, the closely watched Chinese purchasing managers index was
registering near-stagnation.

Arguably the largest single depressant to investors risk appetite was renewed anxiety about Eurozone sovereign debt, when rumors started to
swirl that Greece would seek a restructuring of its debt, much of it held by European

banks, threatening a Lehman-like event that might paralyze the banking system and trip the region back into recession. In late July, a second
bail-out package was agreed to for Greece. But amid doubts about the political will necessary to carry it through, attention turned to the Italian
bond market, the world s third largest, and Spain s. Bond yields soared to euro-era high levels, retreating only when the European Central Bank
started buying the bonds, a role it was never meant to play.

In U.S. fixed income markets, the Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Index of investment grade bonds rose 5.49% in the first half of the
fiscal year. The sub-index representing government bonds returned 6.53% and short to medium Treasuries traded at record low yields.
Conversely, the Barclays Capital High Yield Bond 2% Issuer Constrained Composite Index lost 1.57% in these more risk-averse times.

U.S. equities, represented by the S&P 500® Index including dividends, lost 7.23% in the six months through August, with negative returns in the
last four, including the worst August since 2001. The operating earnings of S&P 500® companies in the second quarter of 2011 eclipsed their
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all-time record of exactly four years before and while that might have supported prices in the past, it was increasingly seen as unlikely to stand in
near-recessionary conditions.

In currencies, the dollar benefited periodically from safe haven status, as the latest trauma of the Eurozone debt crisis played out. But in the end,
many commentators argued that there was no haven that was truly safe and over the six months the dollar ultimately fell 4.98% against the euro,
1.46% against the pound and 5.95% to the yen, which briefly touched a post-war high.

In international markets, the MSCI Japan® Index plunged 19.23% in the first half of the fiscal year, weighed down by the disruptive aftermath of
natural disaster, as the economy re-entered recession. The MSCI Europe ex UK® Index returned a similar (18.34)%, measures of business
activity and confidence steadily deteriorating as the period progressed. The European Central Bank still saw fit, however, to raise interest rates
twice. In the UK, GDP was barely higher than its mid 2010 level, with severe spending cuts on the way. Yet the MSCI UK® Index only fell
8.04%, with contributions from the defensive consumer staples and health care sectors moderating losses in the financials, energy and materials
sectors.

Parentheses denote a negative number.

Past performance does not guarantee future results. The performance quoted represents past performance. Investment return and
principal value of an investment will fluctuate, and shares, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than their original cost. The

Fund s performance is subject to change since the period s end and may be lower or higher than the performance data shown. Please call
(800) 992-0180 or log on to www.ingfunds.com to obtain performance data current to the most recent month end.

Market Perspective reflects the views of ING s Chief Investment Risk Officer only through the end of the period, and is subject to change based
on market and other conditions.
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Index
MSCI World IndexSM

S&P/Case-Shiller 20-City Composite Home Price
Index

Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Index

Barclays Capital High Yield Bond 2% Issuer
Constrained Composite Index

S&P 500® Index
MSCI Japan® Index
MSCI Europe ex UK® Index

MSCI UK® Index

Chicago Board Options Exchange BuyWrite
Monthly Index ( CBOE BuyWrite Monthly Index )
Morgan Stanley Capital International ~Europe,
Australasia and Far East® Index ( MSCI EAFE
Index )
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BEeNcHMARK DESCRIPTIONS

Description

An unmanaged index that measures the performance of over 1,400 securities listed on exchanges in the
U.S., Europe, Canada, Australia, New Zealand and the Far East.

A composite index of the home price index for the top 20 Metropolitan Statistical Areas in the United
States. The index is published monthly by Standard & Poor s.

An unmanaged index of publicly issued investment grade U.S. Government, mortgage-backed,
asset-backed and corporate debt securities.

An unmanaged index that includes all fixed income securities having a maximum quality rating of Bal,
a minimum amount outstanding of $150 million, and at least one year to maturity.

An unmanaged index that measures the performance of securities of approximately 500
large-capitalization companies whose securities are traded on major U.S. stock markets.

A free float-adjusted market capitalization index that is designed to measure developed market equity
performance in Japan.

A free float-adjusted market capitalization index that is designed to measure developed market equity
performance in Europe, excluding the UK.

A free float-adjusted market capitalization index that is designed to measure developed market equity
performance in the UK.

A passive total return index based on selling the near-term, at-the-money S&P 500® Index call option
against the S&P 500® stock index portfolio each month, on the day the current contract expires.

An unmanaged index that measures the performance of securities listed on exchanges in Europe,
Australasia and the Far East. It includes the reinvestment of dividends net of withholding taxes, but does
not reflect fees, brokerage commissions or other expenses of investing.

11



Edgar Filing: ING Global Advantage & Premium Opportunity Fund - Form N-CSRS

Table of Conten
ING GroBAL ApvaNTAGE AND PrREMIUM OpporRTUNITY FUND PorTroLI0 MANAGERS REPORT
Country Allocation

as of August 31, 2011

(as a percentage of net assets)

United States 57.3%
Japan 8.5%
United Kingdom 7.9%
France 4.2%
Germany 4.0%
Australia 3.6%
Switzerland 3.0%
Netherlands 1.8%
Spain 1.7%
Hong Kong 1.2%
Countries between 0.0%-1.1%" 5.3%
Assets in Excess of Other Liabilities* 1.5%
Net Assets 100.0%

* Includes short-term investments.
A Includes 17 countries, which each represents 0.0%-1.1% of net assets.
Portfolio holdings are subject to change daily.

ING Global Advantage and Premium Opportunity Fund s (the Fund ) primary investment objective is to provide a high level of income. Capital
appreciation is a secondary investment objective. The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objectives by:

investing at least 80% of its managed assets in a diversified global equity portfolio; and

utilizing an integrated option writing strategy.
The Fund is managed by Paul Zemsky, Vincent Costa, Jody 1. Hrazanek, Pranay Gupta and Frank van Etten, Portfolio Managers, ING
Investment Management Co. the Sub-Adviser.

Equity Portfolio Construction: Under normal market conditions, the Fund invests in a diversified portfolio of common stocks of companies
located in a number of different countries throughout the world, normally in approximately 750-1500 common stocks, seeking to reduce the
Fund s exposure to individual stock risk. The Fund normally invests across a broad range of countries (usually 25-30 countries), industries and
market sectors, including investments in issuers located in countries with emerging markets.

The Fund s weighting between U.S. and international equities
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depends on the Sub-Adviser s ongoing assessment of market opportunities for the Fund. Under normal market conditions, the Fund seeks to
maintain a target weighting of 60% in U.S. domestic common stocks and not less than 40% in international (ex-U.S.) common stocks.

The Fund s Integrated Option Strategy: The option strategy of the Fund is designed to seek gains and lower volatility of total returns over a
market cycle by writing (selling) index call options on selected indices and/or exchange traded funds ( ETFs ) in an amount equal to
approximately 60% to 100% of the value of the Fund s holdings in common stocks.

Writing index call options involves granting the buyer the right to appreciation of the value of an index above at a particular price (the strike
price ) at a particular time. If the purchaser exercises an index call option sold by the Fund, the Fund will pay the purchaser the difference
between the cash value of the index and the strike price of the option.

The Fund seeks to generate gains from its portfolio index call option strategy and, to a lesser extent, income from dividends on the common
stocks held in the Fund s portfolio. The extent of call option writing activity depends upon market conditions and the Sub-Adviser s ongoing
assessment of the attractiveness of writing call options on selected indices and/or ETFs. Call options are primarily written in over-the-counter

markets with major international banks, broker-dealers and financial institutions. The Fund may also write call options in exchange-listed option
markets.

Top Ten Holdings
as of August 31, 2011*

(as a percentage of net assets)

ExxonMobil Corp. 2.0%
Apple, Inc. 1.4%
Chevron Corp. 1.3%
Microsoft Corp. 1.2%
International Business Machines Corp. 0.9%
Oracle Corp. 0.7%
Coca-Cola Co. 0.7%
Berkshire Hathaway, Inc. 0.7%
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 0.7%
Pfizer, Inc. 0.7%

* Excludes short-term investments.
Portfolio holdings are subject to change daily.

The Fund writes call options that are generally short-term (between 10 days and three months until expiration) and at- or near-the-money. The
Fund typically maintains its call positions until expiration, but it retains the option to buy back the call options and sell new call options. Lastly,
in order to reduce volatility of NAV returns, the Fund employs a policy to hedge major foreign currencies.

Performance: Based on net asset value ( NAV ) as of August 31, 2011, the Fund provided a total return of (8.68)% for the six-month period. This
NAYV return reflects a decrease in the Fund s NAV from $13.76 on February 28, 2011 to $11.95 on August 31, 2011. Based on its share price as

of August 31, 2011, the Fund provided a total return of (10.26)% for the six-month period. This share price return reflects a decrease in the

Fund s share price from $13.72 on
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PorTFoLIO MANAGERS REPORT ING GroBAL ApvaNTAGE AND PrREMIUM OpPORTUNITY FUND

February 28, 2011 to $11.71 on August 31, 2011. The S&P 500° Index, the MSCI EAFE® Index and the CBOE BuyWrite Monthly Index
returned (7.23)%, (11.12)% and (7.63)%, respectively, for the reporting period. The Fund uses a blended reference index that consists of 60%
the S&P 500® Index and 40% the MSCI EAFE® Index. For the reporting period, this reference index returned (8.63)%. During the six month
period, the Fund made quarterly distributions totaling $0.67 per share, all characterized as net investment income. As of August 31, 2011, the
Fund had 18,340,467 shares outstanding.

Equity Portfolio: Performance of our models in the United States was negative for the period. Security selection in information technology,
telecommunications services and consumer staples had a negative impact on performance. Positive performance came in the materials, energy
and financials sectors.

In the international sleeve, performance of our models was flat for the period as well. Security selection in the consumer discretionary,
financials, energy and utility sectors was positive for the Fund. Negative performance came in the industrials, materials and information
technology sectors. Asset allocation made a slight contribution to results for the period.

Options Portfolio: The Fund generates premiums and seeks gains by writing (selling) call options on a variety of market indices on a portion of
the value of the equity portfolio. During the period, the Fund sold short-maturity options on the S&P 500® Index, the DJ Eurostoxx 50 Index, the
Nikkei 225 Index, the FTSE 100 Index and The S&P/ASX 200. The construction of the option portfolio is such that there is a low tracking error
with the reference index of the international portion of the equity portfolio, which is the MSCI EAFE® Index. The strike prices of the traded
options were typically at or near the money, and the expiration dates ranged between three and six weeks. We maintained the coverage ratio at
approximately 65-70% throughout the quarter. Option positions contributed positively to performance, particularly during the latter part of the
period when equity markets were weak. Volatility, as measured by the VIX Index, experienced a significant spike in August.

The Fund continued its policy of hedging major foreign currencies back to the U.S. dollar in an attempt to reduce volatility of NAV returns.
These hedges detracted from performance during the period as the U.S. dollar weakened against a number of the major currencies.

Outlook and Current Strategy: The underlying U.S. and EAFE strategies seek to reward investors with sector and country diversification close
to the S&P 500® and MSCI EAFE® indices, while seeking outperformance through portfolio construction techniques. If the market falls or
moves sideways, the premiums generated from our call writing, dividends and our disciplined equity strategies may make up an important part
of the Fund s total return. If the market rallies, the strategy may generate an absolute positive return but the upside may be limited as call options
will likely be exercised.

We continue to view medium-term macroeconomic and financial risks as high. In the United States, we believe economic data point to
continued slow growth, but not to recession.

In Europe, tensions over the debt crisis remain elevated as a durable structural solution to the sovereign debt crisis remains elusive.

Market volatility remains above historical levels. We believe this potentially should allow the Fund to continue to earn relatively attractive levels
of premiums through its call writing activities.

Portfolio holdings and characteristics are subject to change and may not be representative of current holdings and characteristics. The outlook for this Fund
is based only on the outlook of its portfolio managers through the end of this period, and may differ from that presented for other ING Funds. Performance
data represents past performance and is no guarantee of future results.

Past performance is not indicative of future results. The indices do not reflect fees, brokerage commissions, taxes or other expenses of investing. Investors
cannot invest directly in an index.
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES as or Aucust 31, 2011 (UNAUDITED)

ASSETS:

Investments in securities at value*
Short-term investments at value***
Cash

Cash collateral for futures

Foreign currencies at value**##**
Receivables:

Investments securities sold
Dividends

Unrealized appreciation on forward foreign currency contracts
Prepaid expenses

Total assets

LIABILITIES:

Unrealized depreciation on forward foreign currency contracts
Payable to affiliates

Payable for trustee fees

Other accrued expenses and liabilities

Written options, at fair value”®

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS WERE COMPRISED OF:
Paid-in capital

Undistributed net investment income
Accumulated net realized loss

Net unrealized depreciation

NET ASSETS

* Cost of investments in securities

##k%  Cost of short-term investments

*#%%% Cost of foreign currencies

& Premiums received on written options

Net Assets
Shares outstanding*
Net asset value and redemption price per share

* Unlimited shares authorized; $0.01 par value.

Table of Contents

$216,007,833
6,742,000
12,292
548,477
315,376

450
668,424
118,110

659

224,413,621

1,603,393
33,736
2,327
94,965
3,530,252

5,264,673

$219,148,948

$ 239,855,895
690,920
(12,974,125)
(8,423,742)

$219,148,948

$ 223,821,497

$ 6,742,000
$ 316,559
$ 4,418,869
$219,148,948

18,340,467
$ 11.95
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS For THE Six MoNTHS ENDED AuGusT 31, 2011 (UNAUDITED)

INVESTMENT INCOME:
Dividends, net of foreign taxes withheld*

Total investment income

EXPENSES:

Investment management fees
Transfer agent fees
Administrative service fees
Shareholder reporting expense
Professional fees

Custody and accounting expense
Trustee fees

Miscellaneous expense

Total expenses
Net waived and reimbursed fees

Net expenses
Net investment income

REALIZED AND UNREALIZED GAIN (LOSS)
Net realized gain (loss) on:

Investments

Foreign currency related transactions

Futures

Written options

Net realized gain

Net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation on:

Investments

Foreign currency related transactions
Futures

Written options

Net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation
Net realized and unrealized loss

Decrease in net assets resulting from operations

*  Foreign taxes withheld

Table of Contents

$ 3,505,890

3,505,890

902,045
9,839
120,271
35,880
23,184
77,592
3,680
23,586

1,196,077

1,196,077

2,309,813

7,302,672
(5,725,507)

208,561

6,488,132

8,273,858

(32,767,013)
1,220,913

(148,849)
98,361

(31,596,588)
(23,322,730)

$(21,012,917)

$ 227,290
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See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (UNAUDITED)

Six Months Ended Year Ended
August 31, February 28,
2011 2011

FROM OPERATIONS:
Net investment income $ 2,309,813 $ 3,556,118
Net realized gain 8,273,858 29,408,993
Net change in unrealized depreciation

Total comprehensive income $3,505

Balance as of December 31, 2008 6,552,671 $ 2,204 $ 39,476 $ (763) $ 35,160 $ 76,077

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

F-6

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

U.S. dollars in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of goodwill
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Loss (gain) on sale of marketable securities
Provision for doubtful debts
Minority interest in subsidiaries earnings
Share in result of affiliated company prior to its consolidation
Profit from partial realization of investment in subsidiary

Table of Contents

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

$ 4268 $ 31,979 $ 6,066
3,353 2,031 1,815

- 143 =

27 (43) (21)
236 (34) (38)
(N (125) (116)

1,499 771 =

(674) - -
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Year ended December 31,

company - (26,375) -
Share based compensation expense 155 241 -
Share based compensation expense (minority interest) 66 149 -
Interest accrual in respect of call option to minority 28 - -
Termination of long-term deferred financing cost - - 149

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Deferred income taxes, net (197) (321) 88
Increase in trade accounts receivable 4,177 (985) (2,598)
Increase in other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses (936) (807) (756)
Increase in inventories (2,410) (3,261) (2,460)
(Decrease) increase in trade accounts payable (627) (963) 2,579
Increase (decrease) in other accounts payable and accrued

expenses 659 (1,564) 510
Accrued severance pay, net 477 32) (65)

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,692 804 5,153

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from partial realization of investment in subsidiary

company - 8,726 -
Purchase of additional shares from minority (129) - -
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments 26,358 8,028 1,610
Purchase of short-term investments (9,318) (36,800) (1,249)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 36 97 68
Purchase of property and equipment (3,558) (6,303) (1,694)
Increase in short-term deposits (1,009) - (1,018)
Decrease in short-term deposits - 1,533 -
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired (2) (12) - -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 12,368 (24,719) (2,283)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.)

U.S. dollars in thousands

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of long-term loans (39) (8,000) (3,000)
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Year ended December 31,
Proceeds from long-term loans 5,000 = >
Payment of cash dividend - 2,617) (1,208)
Parent company - current account 193 (796) 117
Proceeds from exercise of options and warrants 16 3,470
Proceeds from issuance of shares by subsidiary company to minority - 41,210 -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 5,170 33,267 (4,091)
Effect of changes in exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents of
foreign currency subsidiary company (445) - -
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,785 9,352 (1,221)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15,114 5,762 6,983
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 33,899 $ 15,114 $ 5,762
(1)  Supplemental disclosure of cash activities:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 187 § 854 $ 752
Income taxes $ 4,131 $ 4,059 $ 4,285
(2)  Acquisition of subsidiary. net of cash acquired (see also
Note 1 f):
Net fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at acquisition date was as follows:
Working capital, net (excluding cash and cash equivalents) $ (1,291) $ - $ (443)
Property and equipment (2,246) - -
Customer base (878) - -
Orders backlog (568) - -
Goodwill (1,185) - 443
Long-term loans, net of current maturities 242 - -
Accrued severance pay 283 - -
Deferred tax liability 404 - -
Fair value of call option to minority 2,155 - -
Minority interest 3,002 - -
Investment in affiliated company account 462 - -
Excess of purchase price over carrying amount of Bental
Industries Ltd. shares acquired from parent company (392) - -
$ (12) $ - 8 =

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE1 GENERAL

a. TAT Technologies Ltd., an Israeli corporation, together with its subsidiaries ( TAT ), is principally engaged in the following
activities:

manufacture and sale of a broad range of heat transfer equipment;
remanufacture, overhaul and repair of heat transfer equipment;
maintenance, repair and overhaul of auxiliary power units, propellers, landing gears and related components;

design, development and manufacture of aviation and flow control accessories including fuel components, secondary
power systems, and various instrumentation and electronic assemblies;

long-term service contracts for the maintenance and overhaul of certain airplane parts and equipment; and
production and development of precision electric motors, mainly earmarked for the defense industries.

The products developed, repaired, and maintained by TAT are primarily used for airborne systems on commercial and military
aircrafts as well as for defense ground systems. The principal markets of TAT are in Israel, Europe and the United States.

b. TAT depends on a limited number of suppliers for some standard and custom designed components for its systems. If such
supplier fails to deliver the necessary components, TAT may be required to seek alternative sources of supply. A change in
suppliers could result in manufacturing delays, which could cause a possible loss of sales and, consequently, could adversely
affect TAT s results of operations and cash position.

c. TAT s shares are listed on the NASDAQ and Tel-Aviv stock exchanges.

d. As of December 31, 2008, TAT owns 61.83% of a U.S. subsidiary: Limco-Piedmont Inc. ( Limco ), which completed an initial
public offering ( IPO ) of its shares on July 18, 2007. Prior to the IPO, TAT owned 100% of Limco. Pursuant to the completion of
the IPO, TAT recognized a gain of $26.4 million, before taxes of $1.2 million. Of such gain, $21.7 million was attributable to the
sale of 4,205,000 shares to the public by Limco for $41.2 million net of issuance costs and $4.7 million was attributable to the
gain TAT recorded as a result of the sale of 855,000 shares of common stock of Limco it held for $8.7 million net of issuance
costs.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)
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NOTE1 GENERAL (Cont.)

Limco conducts its operations through two wholly-owned subsidiary companies: Limco-Airepair Inc. ( Limco ) and Piedmont
Aviation Component Services LLC ( Piedmont ). On February 28, 2007, TAT established a new Delaware corporation: Limco Inc.
and Limco established a new Delaware corporation: Limco Airepair Inc. (Limco Delaware). On March 2, 2007, all assets, except
Limco s membership interest in Piedmont Aviation Component Services, LLC, and all liabilities were assumed by Limco
Delaware. On March 5, 2007 Limco merged with Limco Inc. As part of the merger, TAT received 9,000,000 shares of Limco Inc.
for its 37,500 shares of Limco.

TAT s parent company is TAT Industries Ltd., an Israeli corporation whose shares are listed on the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange
( TAT Industries or the parent company ). TAT Industries holds 58.7% out of TAT s shares, as of December 31, 2008.

Acquisition of Bental Industries Ltd.

On August 18, 2008, following a series of transactions explained below, TAT acquired 70% control in Bental Industries Ltd.

( Bental ), an Israeli company that is a leading supplier of innovative motion technologies for ground and aviation applications to
the defense and commercial industries. This acquisition expands TAT s product lines as well as increase its operations in the
military field while penetrating into new growing markets.

On March 27, 2008, TAT entered into an agreement with Bental Investments Cooperative Agricultural Society Ltd., ( Bental
Investments ), to purchase from it 27% of the outstanding shares of Bental, together with a call and put option for another 18% of
the outstanding shares of Bental held by Bental Investments. The call option, which was exercised on March 30, 2009, was for a
period of four years commencing January 1, 2009 for an exercise price $2,250, and the put option was for a period of two years
commencing January 1, 2011 for $2,138 (both subject to certain exchange rate adjustments). The exercise prices carried interest of
2% per annum.

On April 15, 2008, TAT entered into an agreement to purchase an additional 10% of the outstanding shares of Bental from
Mivtach Shamir Investments (1993) Ltd., ( Mivtach ), subject to the completion of the acquisition from Bental Investment.

Following approvals received, the foregoing transactions with Bental Investments and Mivtach were consummated on May 21,
2008, as a result of which TAT paid in cash a total of $5,144 (comprised of $3,727 to Bental Investments, $1,380 to Mivtach, and
$37 for transaction costs).

On August 18, 2008, following the approval of the shareholders meeting of TAT Industries (the parent company), TAT acquired
an additional 15% shareholding in Bental from TAT Industries for a cash consideration of $1,893, which was based on the price
agreed for the shares in the above transactions.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE1 GENERAL (Cont.)

NOTE 1

Acquisition of Bental Industries Ltd. (cont.)

The acquisition of Bental shares was financed by a $5 million loan received from Bank Mizrahi and TAT s resources. See also
Note 8.

The agreement with Bental Investment also provides for the payment of additional consideration by TAT in the event that during
the three year period following the closing of the transaction TAT consummates an exit, as such term is defined in the agreement,
in such event, Bental Investments will be entitled to additional consideration for the shares and call option shares (if purchased)
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equal to a certain percentage of the difference between the price per share that TAT paid for such shares and the price per share
paid in the exit transaction (30% if the exit is within one year of the closing, 20% if the exit is within two years of the closing and
10% if the exit is within three years of the closing).

The acquisition of Bental has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting as determined in SFAS No. 141,

Business Combinations , as step acquisitions of 37% as of May 21, 2008, and the remaining 33% as of August 18, 2008. The
acquisition of the 15% from TAT Industries was recorded based on the carrying value of the investment in Industries books of
$1,501 (the difference of $392 was recorded to retained earnings). The liability for 18% call/put option of $2,183 was recorded
based on based on EITF 00-04, Majority Owner s Accounting for a Transaction in the Shares of a Consolidated Subsidiary and a
Derivative Indexed to the Noncontrolling Interest in that Subsidiary , as a purchase and financing transaction, since the risks and
rewards of owning the 18% interest have been purchased by TAT. According to the EITF 00-04, TAT recorded $28 of accrued
interest under the call/put option to interest expense during 2008.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE1 GENERAL (Cont.)

NOTE 1

Acquisition of Bental Industries Ltd. (cont.)
The total purchase price of $9,262 has been allocated to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on the estimated fair
value on August 18, 2008 (taking into account the short time between the transactions, management believes that the difference in

the fair value of assets at May 21 and August 18 is insignificant), as follows:

August 18, 2008

Assets:

Cash acquired $ 7,025
Other current assets 8,535
Property and equipment 2,246
Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets (1) 1,446
Goodwill (2) 1,185

Total assets acquired 20,437

Liabilities assumed:

Current liabilities 7,244
Long-term liabilities 929

8,173
Minority interest 3,002
Net assets acquired $ 9,262
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1 The intangible assets acquired of $1,446, consisting of customer base of $878 and order backlog of $568, have been valued
using the Income Approach on the basis of the present value of cash flows attributable to the asset over their expected
future life of 5 and 0.4 years, respectively, and are amortized based on a straight-line basis.

2) The excess purchase price of $1,185 over the net amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recognized
as goodwill. The goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.

The intangible assets and goodwill were assigned to the OEM  Electric Motion systems segment, see Note 13.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE1 GENERAL (Cont.)
f. Acquisition of Bental Industries Ltd. (cont.)

The results of Bental are included in TAT s consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition (August 18, 2008)
through December 31, 2008. Set forth below is unaudited pro forma financial information for the two years ended December 31,
2008, based on the assumption that the acquisition of Bental had been consummated on the first day of each of the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, including the effect of amortization of intangible assets from such dates.

The historical consolidated financial information has been adjusted to give effect to pro forma adjustments that are (1) directly
attributable to the acquisition, (2) factually supportable, and (3) expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results.
The unaudited pro forma financial information is presented for comparative purposes only, it is not necessarily indicative of the
operating results that would have occurred if the acquisition had been completed at January 1, 2007 and January 1, 2008, and it is
not necessary indicative of future operating results.

The unaudited pro forma information is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Net revenues $ 125,683 $ 105,049

Net income $ 6,930 $ 32,723

Basic net earnings per share $ 1.059 $ 0.516

Diluted net earnings per share $ 1.055 $ 0.511
F-13
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TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States ( U.S. GAAP ), applied on consistence basis, unless otherwise indicated below.

a. Use of estimates:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclose the nature of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

b. Financial statements in U.S. dollars:

The majority of TAT s revenues are generated in U.S. dollars ( dollar ) and a substantial portion of TAT s costs is incurred in dollars.
In addition, a significant portion of TAT s financings have been obtained in dollars. Accordingly, the dollar is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which TAT Technologies Ltd., Limco and TAT GAL Inc. operate and accordingly their

functional and reporting currency is the dollar.

Transactions and balances of TAT., Limco and TAT GAL Inc. which are denominated in other currencies have been remeasured
into dollars in accordance with principles set forth in SFAS No. 52 Foreign Currency Translation . All exchange gains and losses
from the remeasurement mentioned above are reflected in the statement of income in financial expenses, net.

For Bental whose functional currency has been determined to be the New Israeli Shekel, assets and liabilities are translated at
year-end exchange rates, and statement of income items are translated at average exchange rates prevailing during the year.
Resulting translation differences are recorded as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in shareholders
equity.

c. Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of TAT and its subsidiaries. Intercompany balances and transactions,
including profits from intercompany sales not yet realized outside TAT, have been eliminated upon consolidation.

d. Cash equivalents:
Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash with original maturities of three

months or less.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)
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NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

Marketable securities:

Short-term investments are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investment in Debt and
Equity Securities. Management determines the classification of its investments in marketable debt and equity securities at the time
of purchase and reevaluates such determinations as of each balance sheet date. As of December 31, 2008, all marketable securities
covered by SFAS No. 115, were designated as available-for-sale. Securities available-for-sale are carried at fair value, with the
unrealized gains and losses, net of income taxes, reported as a separate component of shareholders equity classified as other
comprehensive income (loss). Realized gains and losses and declines in market value judged to be other than temporary are
included in other income. The unrealized loss of $90 relates to short-term investments deemed to be temporary and the unrealized
loss position is less than twelve months (net of taxes). Dividends are also included in other income. TAT s short-term investments
consist of auction rate tax-exempt securities and corporate and government bonds with maturities of one to four years.

The fair value of short-term investments is determined by quoted market prices of the underlying securities (other than auction
rate tax exempt securities see below). For purposes of determining gross realized gains or losses, the cost of the security is
determined based on specific identification.

Auction rate securities are variable rate debt securities. While the underlying security has a long-term nominal maturity, the
interest rate is reset through auctions that are typically held every 7, 28, or 35 days. The securities trade at par and are callable at
par on any interest payment date at the option of the issuer. Interest is paid at the end of each auction period. TAT classified these
securities as short-term available-for-sale because it intends to liquidate them as the need for working capital arises in the ordinary
course of business and is able to liquidate them or roll them over to the next reset period. During the first three months of 2008
TAT determined to liquidate its holdings of variable rate debt securities and in January, February and October 2008 it sold
approximately 91% of its auction rate tax-exempt securities portfolio at par and reinvested the proceeds in high-grade corporate
debt, governmental debt instruments and money market funds.

The remaining balance of $2.25 million at December 31, 2008 will be sold as the market allows. Should management determine
that these securities were to be held longer than one year then they would be classified as long-term securities.

In September 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, or SFAS 157. Among other requirements, SFAS
157 defines fair value and establishes a framework for measuring fair value and also expands disclosure about the use of fair value
to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS 157 is effective beginning the first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. TAT
adopted SFAS 157 during the first quarter of 2008. Although the adoption of SFAS 157 did not materially impact TAT s
financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows, TAT is now required to provide additional disclosures as part of the
financial statements.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

€.

NOTE 2

Marketable securities (cont.):

SFAS 157 establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers
include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted
prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little
or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.
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As of December 31, 2008, TAT held certain assets that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis, including
money market funds and available-for-sale securities. TAT s available-for-sale securities include auction-rate securities which
consist of bonds with an auction reset feature whose underlying assets are Oklahoma state municipal bonds. As a result of failed
auctions, these securities are currently illiquid through the normal auction process and quoted market prices and other observable
market data are not available or diminished.

Accordingly, these investments were valued using pricing models based on the net present value of estimated future cash flows as
of December 31, 2008. These securities were also compared, when possible, to other observable market data with similar
characteristics to the securities held by TAT.

TAT s financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis subject to the disclosure requirements of SFAS 157 at December
31, 2008, were as follows (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Observable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets:
Money Market funds (included
in cash and cash equivalents) $ 18,807 $ - $ - $ 18,807
Auction-rate securities - 2,250 - 2,250
Municipal bonds 9,050 - - 9,050
Total $ 27857 $ 2,250 $ - $ 30,107
F-16

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

NOTE 2

Accounts receivable:

TAT s accounts receivable balances are due from companies primarily in the airline and defense industries. Credit is extended
based on evaluation of a customer s financial condition and, generally, collateral is not required. Accounts receivable from sales of
services are typically due from customers within 30 days. Accounts receivable balances are stated at amounts due from customer
net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts outstanding longer than the contractual payments terms are considered past
due. TAT determines its allowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of time accounts receivable are past
due, TAT s previous loss history, the customer s current ability to pay its obligation to TAT, and the condition of the general
economy and the industry as a whole. TAT writes-off accounts receivable when they become uncollectible and payments
subsequently received on such receivables are credited to the allowance for doubtful accounts.
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Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value.

Inventories write-offs are provided to cover risks arising from dead and slow-moving items, discontinued products and excess
inventories according to revenue forecasts.

Cost is determined as follows:
Raw materials and components using the average cost and the first-in, first-out (FIFO) methods.

Work in process represents the cost of raw materials, components and, manufacturing costs which include direct and indirect
allocable costs. Cost of raw materials and components is determined as described above. Manufacturing costs are determined on
average basis.

Because TAT sells products and services related to airplane accessories (heat transfer equipment, APU s, propellers, and landing
gear) for airplanes that can be in service for 20 to 50 years, it must keep a supply of such products and parts on hand while the
airframes are in use. TAT writes down its inventory for estimated obsolescence and unmarketable inventory equal to the
difference between the cost of inventory and estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market
conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those anticipated, inventory adjustments may be required. TAT
believes that these estimates are reasonable and historically have not resulted in material adjustments in subsequent periods when
the estimates are adjusted to actual amounts.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

NOTE 2

Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

years
Buildings 25-39
Machinery and equipment 3-15
Motor vehicles 5-7
Office furniture and equipment 3-20

Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight line method over the period of the lease contract, provided that this
period does not exceed the useful life of the asset.

Fixed assets not in use and held for sale, are stated at the lower of net cost or estimated realizable value.
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Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, while renewals and betterments of a permanent
nature are capitalized.

Investment grants

As a governmental incentive for industrial companies in Israel, the Investment Center , which is a branch of the Israel Ministry of
Industry and Trade, permits industrial companies to submit a request to qualify as an Approved Enterprise . An Approved
Enterprise is entitled to certain benefits in respect of capital investments. The benefits may be in the form of reduced tax rates and
of capital grants received as a percentage of the investments of the Approved Enterprise. The amount of a capital grant is
determined as a percentage of the Approved Enterprise investment in property, plant and equipment.

These capital grants are non-royalty bearing and are not conditioned on the results of operations. As the capital grants are a direct
participation in the cost of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, they are offset against the cost of property, plant and
equipment.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

j-

NOTE 2

Intangible assets:

In accordance with SFAS No. 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets , intangible assets subject to amortization are amortized
over their useful life, using the straight line method of amortization.

The following is the expected useful life of TAT s intangible assets:

Years
Non-Compete agreements 3
Lease at below market prices 2.5
Existing costumer relationship 5-10
Consulting services agreement 0.3
Trade name 10
Certificates 7
Order backlog 0.4

Amortization expense amounted to $960, $474 and $477 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Impairment of long-lived assets:

TAT s long-lived assets (except goodwill see I below) are reviewed for impairment in accordance with the provisions set fourth in
SFAS No. 144  Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS No. 144) whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to the future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by

the assets. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. During the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, no
impairment losses have been recognized.
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TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)
1. Goodwill:

Goodwill is the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination. Goodwill is not amortized. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill Other Intangible Assets (SFAS
142), TAT evaluates the carrying value of goodwill during the fourth quarter of each year and between annual evaluations if
events occur or circumstances change that would indicate a possible impairment.

In evaluating whether goodwill was impaired, TAT compared the fair value of the reporting units to which goodwill is assigned to
their carrying value (Step one of the impairment test). In calculating fair value, TAT used a weighting of the valuations calculated
using market multiples and the income approach. The income approach is a valuation technique under which TAT estimates

future cash flows using the reporting units financial forecasts. Future estimated cash flows are discounted to their present value to
calculate fair value. The market approach establishes fair value by comparing TAT to other publicly traded guideline companies

or be analysis of actual transactions of similar businesses or assets sold. The summation of TAT s reporting units fair values must
be compared to TAT s market capitalization as of the date of the impairment test. In the situation where a reporting unit s carrying
amount exceeds its fair value, the amount of the impairment loss must be measured. The measurement of the impairment (Step

two of the impairment test) is calculated by determining the implied fair value of a reporting unit s goodwill. In calculating the
implied fair value of goodwill, the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the other assets and liabilities of that unit
based on their values. The excess of the fair value of a reporting unit over the amount assigned to its other assets and liabilities is
the implied fair value of goodwill. The goodwill impairment is measured as the excess of the carrying amount of goodwill over its
implied fair value. The evaluation performed during 2007 identified $143 of non-cash goodwill impairment charge. The
evaluations performed during 2008 and 2006 did not identify any goodwill impairment losses.

Changes in goodwill during the years 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

2008 2007
Balance, at January 1 $ 4780 $ 4,923
Impairment loss - (143)
Acquired - Bental - Note 1 f 1,185
Acquired -Limco 34 -
$ 5999 §$ 4,780

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

Revenue recognition:

TAT generates its revenues from the sale of products and systems (The OEM segments) and from providing MRO services
(remanufacture, repair and overhaul services and long-term service contracts) and parts services.

Revenues from the sale of products and services are recognized in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements ( SAB No. 104 ) when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery of the product
has occurred, provided the collection of the resulting receivable is probable, the price is fixed or determinable and no significant
obligation exists. TAT does not grant a right of return.

Revenues from product sales are recognized when product is shipped to the customer and title passes to the customer.

Revenues from multi-year, fixed price contracts for OEM customers are recognized when a product is shipped (and title passes) to
the customer. Management provides for losses, if expected for the remaining portion of such contracts. For the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, no losses have been recognized for such fixed price contracts.

Revenues from remanufacture, repair and overhaul (MRO) services are recognized as services are performed, at the time when the
customer-owned material is shipped back to the customer.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are accounted according to FASB Technical Bulletin No. 90-1 (Amended), Accounting for
Separately Priced Extended Warranty and Product Maintenance Contracts . Accordingly, revenues from maintenance contracts are
recognized over the contract period in proportion to the costs expected to be incurred in performing services under the contract.
TAT estimates the costs that are expected to be incurred based on its experience with the aggregate costs incurred and to be
incurred on contracts of this nature. The cost incurred related to the maintenance contracts are not incurred on a straight-line basis,
as the timing to provide the maintenance services is dependent on when parts under these contracts require maintenance, therefore
TAT accrue revenue based on anticipated margins per contract as costs are incurred. These revenues are then compared to actual
results and adjusted to either deferred revenue for results greater than historical estimates or expensed in those cases of
performance less than historical estimates. These accounts are reviewed monthly and adjusted as needed based on cost structures.

Revenues from royalties from sales of products developed with TAT s intellectual property, technology and technical assistance
are recognized when the related sales are made.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

NOTE 2

Shipping and handling costs:

Shipping and handling costs billed to customers are included in revenues. The cost of shipping and handling products is included
in the costs of revenues.
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0. Warranty costs:

TAT provides warranties for its products and services ranging from one to five years, which vary with respect to each contract and
in accordance with the nature of each specific product.

TAT estimates the costs that may be incurred under its warranty and records a liability in the amount of such costs at the time the
product is shipped. TAT periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as
necessary.

p. Research and development:

Research and development costs net of grants and participations received are charged to expenses as incurred.

Bental received royalty-bearing grants from the Israeli Chief Scientist s Office (OCS) for the purpose of partially funding approved
research and development projects. The grants are not to be repaid, but instead Bental is obliged to pay royalties as a percentage

of future sales if and when sales from the funded projects will be generated. These grants are recognized as a deduction from
research and development costs at the time Bental is entitled to such grants on the basis of the research and development costs
incurred. Since the payment of royalties is not probable when the grants are received, TAT recognizes royalty expenses, when the
related revenues are recognized, as part of cost of revenues. For more information regarding OCS royalties commitment, see Note
9b (2).

qg. Income taxes:

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes ( SFAS No. 109 ). This statement
prescribes the use of the liability method, whereby deferred tax assets and liability account balances are determined based on

temporary differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and for tax loss carryforwards. Deferred

taxes are measured using the enacted laws and tax rates that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. TAT
provides a valuation allowance, if necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to their estimated realizable value, see Note 12].

Results for tax purposes are measured and reflected in NIS. As explained in b above, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in U.S. dollars. In accordance with paragraph 9(f) of SFAS No. 109, TAT has not provided deferred income taxes on
the differences resulting from changes in exchange rate and indexation.
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NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)
q. Income taxes (cont.):

TAT did not provide for deferred taxes attributable to dividend distribution out of retained tax-exempt earnings from Approved
Enterprise plans (see Note 12 c), since it has no intention to declare dividends out of such tax exempt income. Management
considers such retained earn to be essentially permanent in duration.

I. Concentrations of credit risk:

Financial instruments that potentially subject TAT to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents,
marketable securities and accounts receivable.
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Cash and cash equivalents are deposited with major banks in Israel and the United States. Such deposits in the United States may
be in excess of insured limits and are not insured in other jurisdictions. Management believes that the financial institutions that
hold TAT s cash and cash equivalents, are financially sound, and, accordingly, minimal credit risk exists with respect to these
financial instruments.

TAT s marketable securities include investment in debentures and in shares. Management believes that the companies that issued
the debentures and the shares are financially sound, the portfolio is well diversified, and accordingly, minimal credit risk exists
with respect to the marketable securities.

TAT s accounts receivable are derived mainly from sales to customers in the United States, Israel and Europe. TAT generally does
not require collateral, however, in certain circumstances; TAT may require letters of credit. Management believes that credit risks
relating to accounts receivable are minimal since the majority of TAT s customers are financially sound. TAT performs ongoing
credit evaluation of their customers financial condition. The allowance for doubtful accounts is determined with respect to specific
debts that are doubtful of collection.

The allowance for doubtful accounts (income) expenses for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, was ($1), ($125),
and ($116), respectively.

TAT entered into foreign exchange forward contracts and option strategies (together: derivative instruments ) intended to protect
against the increase in value of forecasted non-dollar currency cash flows. These derivative instruments are designed to provide an
economic hedge to TAT s non-dollar currency exposure (see Note 2 u below).
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NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

NOTE 2

Severance pay:

TAT s severance pay for its Israeli employees is calculated pursuant to Israeli Severance Pay Law based on the most recent salary
of the employees multiplied by the number of years of employment as of the balance sheet date. The liability is presented on the
undiscounted basis. TAT records an expense for the net increase in its severance liability. TAT s liability for all of its Israeli
employees is fully covered for by monthly deposits with severance pay funds, insurance policies, Mivtahim Social Insurance
Institution Ltd. ( Mivtahim ) and by an accrual.

The liability covered by deposits with Mivtahim is irrevocably transferred to Mivtahim. Accordingly, neither the amounts
accumulated with Mivtahim, nor the corresponding liabilities for severance pay are reflected in the consolidated balance sheet.

The deposited funds include profits accumulated up to the balance sheet date. The deposited funds may be withdrawn only upon
the fulfillment of the obligation pursuant to Israeli Severance Pay Law or labor agreements. The value of the deposited funds is
based on the cash surrendered value of these policies and includes profits (or loss) accumulated through the balance sheet date.

Severance expense was $441, $408 and $293 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Limco Inc. sponsors a 401(K) profit sharing plan covering substantially all of its employees. The plan permits the employer to
contribute a discretionary amount for a plan year, which the employer designates as qualified non-elective contribution.
Contributions to plan by TAT were $204, $155 and $176 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Fair value of financial instruments:
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SFAS No. 107 Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments requires disclosure of the estimated fair value of an entity s
financial instruments. Such disclosures, which pertain to TAT s financial instruments, do not purport to represent the aggregate net
fair value of TAT. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximated fair
value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

The estimated fair value of financial instruments has been determined by TAT using available market information and valuation
methodologies. Considerable judgment is required in estimating fair values. Accordingly, the estimates may not be indicative of
the amounts TAT could realize in a current market exchange.

As for the fair value for marketable securities classified as available-for-sale, see e above.
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NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

NOTE 2

Fair value of financial instruments (cont.):

TAT s outstanding debt amount as included in the financial statements is equal to its fair market value.

The fair values of long-term liabilities were estimated by discounting the future cash flows, using the rate currently available for
liabilities of similar terms and maturity. The carrying amount of TAT s long-term liabilities approximates their fair value.

Derivative financial instruments

As part of its hedging strategy, TAT enters into forward exchange contracts in order to protect TAT from the risk that the eventual
dollar cash flows from the sale of products to international customers will be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates.

TAT also enters into forward exchange contracts and options strategies in order to limit the exposure to exchange rate fluctuation
associated with payroll expenses mainly incurred in NIS. TAT elected not to follow the designation and documentation processes
required to qualify for the hedge accounting method under SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities , and any gain or loss derived from such instruments is recognized immediately as financial expenses, net.

As of December 31, 2008, TAT had forward contracts with a notional amount of approximately $5,400 to purchase NIS. These
foreign exchange forward put and call options have maturities of 12 months or less.

The fair value of the foreign exchange contracts and the options was not significant as of December 31, 2008.
Basic and diluted net income per share:

Basic net income per share is computed based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during each year.
Diluted net income per share includes the effect of stock option warrants outstanding during the year, in accordance with SFAS
No. 128, Earnings Per Share ( SFAS No. 128 ), using the treasury stock method.

Registration Rights Agreement
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Limco granted TAT the right to require registration for resale of the shares of common stock TAT holds in Limco under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. TAT may sell all or some of the shares of the subsidiary s common stock that it owns or
distribute those shares to its shareholders. Pursuant to FSP EITF 00-19-2, Accounting for Registration Payment Arrangements

( FSP ), which addresses an issuer s accounting for registration payment arrangements, Limco concluded that no obligation should
be recorded related to the registration rights.
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NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)
X. Impact of recently issued Accounting Standards:

1. In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (Revised 2007) Business Combinations, a revision of the original
SFAS No. 141". This statement requires an acquirer to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any
noncontrolling interest in the acquirer at the acquisition date, measured at their fair values as of that date, with limited
exceptions specified in the Statement. That replaces the original Statement 141 s cost-allocation process, which required the
cost of an acquisition to be allocated to the individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair
values. TAT is required to adopt the revised SFAS No. 141 on January 1, 2009, in relation to future business combinations.
TAT is currently evaluating the potential impact of the revised SFAS No. 141 on TAT s consolidated financial statements.

2. In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements an
amendment of ARB No. 51. This statement establishes accounting and reporting standards for noncontrolling interests in
subsidiaries and for the deconsolidation of subsidiaries and clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an
ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements.
SFAS No. 160 also required expanded disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent
owners and the interests of the noncontrolling owners of a subsidiary. TAT is required to adopt SFAS No. 160 on January
1, 2009. TAT is currently evaluating the potential impact of the SFAS No. 160 on TAT s consolidated financial statements.

3. In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosure about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 133, ( SFAS No. 161 ). This statement requires that objectives for using derivative
instruments be disclosed in terms of underlying risk and accounting designation. TAT is required to adopt SFAS No. 161
on January 1, 2009. The adoption of SFAS 161 is not expected to have a material impact on TAT s consolidated financial
statements.

y. Reclassifications

Certain financial statement data for prior years has been reclassified to conform to current year financial statement presentation.
The classification did not have an impact on net income or shareholders equity.
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U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 3 INVENTORIES

Inventories are composed of the following:

December 31,
2008 2007
Raw materials and components $ 10,179 $ 5,940
Work in process 17,503 15,340
Spare parts 7,251 6,862
Finished goods 81 47
$ 35,014 $ 28,189

Raw materials and components are net of reserve for slow moving and obsolete inventories in the amount of $2,036 and $1,768 at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

NOTE 4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Composition of assets, grouped by major classifications, is as follows:

December 31,

2008 2007

Cost:
Land and buildings (1) $ 3734 % 2,812
Machinery and equipment (2) 32,875 26,038
Motor vehicles 1,873 1,655
Office furniture and equipment 1,804 2,102
40,286 32,607
Less: Accumulated depreciation 25,099 20,680
Depreciated cost $ 15,187 $ 11,927

Depreciation expenses amounted to $2,393, $1,557 and $1,332 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

(1) Includes lease rights to land in the amount of $1 under a sub-lease agreement with TAT Industries. The lease period ends in 2020
and includes a renewal option if TAT Industries exercises the option granted by the Israel Land Administration. See also Note 7a.

Registration with the Land Registrant of the transfer of sub-lease rights from TAT Industries to TAT has not yet been finalized
due to technical reasons.
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2) The cost in 2008 is net of investment grants received by Bental (mainly for instruments, machinery and equipment) in the amount
of $299 as of December 31, 2008. There were no investment grants received in 2007.

Liens on property, plant and equipment is discussed at Note 9f.
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NOTE 5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
a. Intangible assets:
December 31,
2008 2007
Cost:
Customer relationships $ 2,815 % 1,937
Order backlog 568 -
Non-compete agreement 653 653
Trade name 128 128
Others 179 179
4,343 2,897
Accumulated amortization:
Customer relationships 620 485
Order backlog 568 -
Non-compete agreement 653 543
Trade name 128 30
Others 179 130
2,148 1,188
Amortized cost $ 2,195 $ 1,709
b. Based on the intangible assets in service as of December 31, 2008, estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years
and thereafter is as follows:
Amortization
Year ended December 31, expenses
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Year ended December 31,

Amortization
expenses

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
Thereafter

$ 393
393
393
388
315
313

$ 2,195

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 6 OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Employees and payroll accruals

Government authorities

Related parties

Advances from customers

Liability with respect to non-compete agreement
Warranty provision

Sales rebates

Accrued royalties

Other accrued expenses

NOTE7 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

a. Transactions with TAT Industries:

NOTE 7 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

December 31,

2008 2007
$ 3,635 % 2,457
608 177
163 55
525 -
- 145
699 784
290 142
178 179
1,262 371
$ 7,360 $ 4,310

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
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Year ended December 31,

Management fees $ 50 $ 50 $ 50
Other manufacturing costs $ 4 3 5 % 36
Lease expenses (1) $ 329 $ 323§ 316

1) During 2000, TAT entered into a lease agreement with TAT Industries for a period of 25 years. According to the
agreement, TAT leases from TAT Industries the factory premises for an annual amount of approximately $300, increased
by 2% annually, subject to a revaluation based on market value every five years. TAT is entitled to a one-time right of
termination of the agreement after 10 years.

During 2005, a revaluation of the lease agreement was prepared by a valuation consultant, determining the annual lease fee

as $310.
b. Balances with related parties:
December 31,
2008 2007
TAT Industries - current account (1) $ 383 % 576

1) The balance mainly consists of Value Added Tax refund to be collected by TAT Industries on behalf of TAT, since TAT
Industries and TAT are reporting to the Value Added Tax Authorities on a consolidated basis. The amount is linked to the
Israeli Consumer Price Index.
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NOTE7 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (Cont.)

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

& Commissions to a company owned by certain
former shareholders (see Note 9a (1)) $ 69 $ 442 $ 387

Management fee to shareholders (see f and g
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Year ended December 31,

below) $ 100 $ 250 $ 250

Rental and other services (see h below) $ 170 $ - 8 -

Salaries of former principal owners (see d and
e below) $ 752 % 533 % 489

d. The former Chairman of the Board of Directors and the former Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors were entitled each to a
bonus of 2.5% of the annual consolidated operating income, in excess of $500. Bonus expenses were $ 66, $462 and $518 in
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and were recorded as part of the general and administrative expenses.

e. As result of the change in control of TAT Industries shareholders, during December 2007, TAT s Chairman of the Board of
Directors (former principal owner), announced his resignation from his position, effective January 1, 2008, but he continued his
employment, as a consultant to TAT, in accordance with his employment agreement with TAT, until April 2008. On September
12, 2008, TAT and the former Chairman of the Board of Directors signed an appendix to the employment agreement, according to
which the employment relationship would be deemed terminated retroactively, as of January 1, 2008, and TAT would pay the
former Chairman of the Board of Directors, a fixed amount of $ 267 for all the benefits related to his employment. On May 19,
2008, TAT s Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, announced his resignation from his position
effective to that date. Accordingly, a provision for notice period of $110 was recognized in the statement of income for the year
ended December 31, 2008.

f. A former shareholder of TAT provided TAT with management and consulting services in consideration of the lower of: (i) 3% of
the consolidated operating income in excess of $500, or (ii) $250. Consulting expenses were $250 for each of the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and were recorded a part of the general and administrative expenses. The management
and consulting services agreement expired on December 31, 2007, pursuant to the sale by the shareholder of the majority of its
holding in TAT, during December 2007.

g. In February 2009, subsequent to the balance sheet date, TAT entered into management and consulting services agreement with its
ultimate parent company, for a consideration of $100 per quarter, effective October 1, 2008.

h. Bental is engaged in various agreements with its minority shareholders and other related parties for the rental, maintenance and
other services provided to it, in connection with its plant.
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NOTE 8 LONG-TERM LOANS

a. Terms of the loans:
Interest Rate Years of December 31,
Currency December 31, 2008 Maturity 2008
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Interest Rate Years of December 31,
Currency December 31, 2008 Maturity 2008

Long-term loans (1) $ 4.67% 2011-2013 $ 5,000
Long-term loan (2) NIS 4.5% 2009-2012 124
Long-term loan NIS 6.3% 2009-2012 214
5,338

Less - current maturities (150)
$ 5,188

Required principal payments (including current maturities) as of December 31, 2008, were as follows:

Year Amount
2009 $ 150
2010 111
2011 815
2012 762
2013 3,500
5,338

(1)  Two loans with original amounts of $2,250 and $2,750, to be repaid in three annual installments of $750, $750, $3,500,
commencing 2011. These loans bear quarterly interest of Libor + 1.85%

2) Linked to the consumer price index

TAT provided certain guarantees and covenants, to secure long-term loans, see Note 9f.
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NOTE 9 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a. Commissions arrangements

(1)  TAT was committed to pay commissions to a company owned by certain of its former shareholders for representing the
heat exchangers division in North America (see Note 7c). According to the agreement, the commissions were to be paid at
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a rate of 10% of the amount of inventories purchased in North America and 3% of the sales made in North America. The
commissions were recorded as part of the cost of revenues and selling and marketing expenses, respectively. During 2008,
TAT incorporated a new subsidiary company, to represent its heat exchangers division in North America, therefore the
commission agreement with the affiliated company was terminated.

(2)  TAT is committed to pay marketing commissions to salesmen at a range of 1% to 12% of total sales contracts which were
received through promotion and distribution carried out by them. Commission expenses were $888, $490 and $656 for the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The commissions were recorded as part of the selling and
marketing expenses.

b. Royalty commitments

1) TAT is committed to pay royalties to third parties through 2011 of between 5% to 12% of sales of products developed by
the third parties or developed through the intellectual property and goodwill which were purchased from such third parties.
Royalty expenses were $261, $395 and $550 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
royalties were recorded as part of the cost of revenues.

2) Bental is committed to pay royalties to the Israeli government on proceeds from the sales of products, in the research and
development of which the Israeli government participated by way of grants. Under the terms of TAT s funding from the
Office of the Chief Scientist, royalty payments are computed on the portion of sales from such products at a rate of 2% and
3.5%. The commitment to the Chief Scientist is limited to the amount of the received participation (dollar linked), with the
addition of an annual interest rate based on Libor. As of December 31, 2008, the total amount of royalty bearing grants due
by TAT to the Chief Scientist was approximately $134.
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NOTE 9 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont.)
c. Lease commitments

Limco leases many of its operating and office facilities for various terms under long-term, non-cancelable operating lease
agreements. The leases expire at various dates through January 2013. The monthly rental expense ranges from approximately $0.1
to $9. Certain leases contain renewal options as defined in the agreements. Lease expense (excluding related parties) totaled $214
$330, and $217 for the years then ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 respectively.

TAT leases its factory from a parent company, see Note 7a, until 2025.
Bental leases an area of its plant from its related party for $55 per annum, under a long-term lease until 2013.

As of December 31, 2008, future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

2009 $ 577
2010 585
2011 562
2012 481
2013 433
Thereafter 4,882
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Total $ 7,520

Legal claims

During 2004, two former employees filed a claim against TAT and against an employment agency, alleging breach of contract and
seeking compensation for salary delays and salary differences in the amount of $279. On June 11, 2008, the labor court ruled in
this claim, and accordingly TAT and the employment agency are required, jointly and severally, to compensate the former
employees in a total amount of $170. On September 2, 2008 TAT and the employment agency served an appeal for an amount of
$135, and currently all parties referred to mediation by the court. Based upon its legal advisors advice, TAT cannot estimate the
appeal chances at this stage, however in the event TAT will hold the employment agency responsible for any loss that may arise
from such a claim.

Guarantees

TAT provides bank guarantees to third parties, in the ordinary course of business, mainly in order to secure certain advances from
customers. The maximum credit risk for these guarantees totaled approximately $699 as of December 31, 2008
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NOTE 9 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont.)

NOTE 9

Covenants and liens on assets

1) In connection with bank loans, including performance guarantees issued by banks and bank guarantees in order to secure
certain advances from customers, TAT and its subsidiary = Bental are obligated to meet certain financial covenants. Such
covenants include requirements for shareholders equity, current ratio, operating profit margin, tangible net worth, and not
to conduct certain actions without informing the banks, such as allocating shares to third parties involved with change in
control. As of December 31, 2008, TAT and Bental were in full compliance with all covenants.

2) In order to secure bank loans, TAT granted a lien on its inventories and trade accounts receivable, specific lien on its
short-term bank deposit of $1,009, which is recorded in other accounts receivable in the balance sheet, as well as specific
lien on Bental s shares held by TAT.

(3)  Inorder to secure bank loans, Bental granted floating liens on all of its property and assets, fixed lien on its unpaid share
capital, goodwill and first priority liens on its fixed assets, checks and other trading instruments.

(4)  Alien on Bental Approved Enterprise has been registered in favor of the State of Israel (see Note 12 ¢ below).

Limco is currently engaged in a contract dispute with one of its suppliers. TAT believes that the dispute will be resolved on a
commercial basis. However, the inability to amicably resolve such dispute could have a material adverse effect on TAT s business
and financial condition.
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EQUITY

TAT s ordinary shares confer upon their holders voting rights, the right to receive dividends, if declared, and any amounts payable
upon the dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs of TAT.

On August 10, 2004, TAT entered into an investment agreement, according to which the investor purchased 857,143 Ordinary
shares of NIS 0.9 par value of TAT, and was granted a warrant to purchase 500,000 Ordinary shares of NIS 0.90 par value at an
exercise price of $8.50 per share, exercisable for 66 months from the date of grant. The total cash received was $6,000.

In addition, the investor and TAT entered into a credit line agreement, under which the investor made a line of credit available to
TAT in the amount of up to $2,000. The amount of the credit withdrawn from the investor shall not be less than $1,000. The
withdrawn credit bears interest at an annual rate of 5%, in addition to an annual handling fee of 0.5% of the credit line amount.
The withdrawn credit will be settled in four equal payments, no later than 66 months from the date of the agreement.
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NOTE 10 SHAREHOLDERS

NOTE 10

EQUITY (Cont.)

TAT recorded the fair value of the credit line, which amounted to $263, as deferred charges, which were amortized throughout the
term of the credit line agreement. As such, the total proceeds received for the issuance of shares and warrants, consisting of cash
and a provision of a credit line, amounted to $6,265 from which issuance expenses in the amount of $273 were deducted. In
addition, a consulting agreement was entered into with the investors, see Note 7e.

On September 5, 2006, TAT notified the investor on the cancellation of the credit line, which was not utilized by it since the date
of grant. As a result, TAT recorded the unamortized portion of the deferred charge, amounted to $149 to financial expenses.

On February 21, 2007, the investor exercised its warrant to purchase 500,000 Ordinary shares of NIS 0.9 par value each,
according to the investment agreement, for an exercise price of $6.94 per share, which reflected the base exercise price of $8.5
reduced by the effect of dividends during the period the warrants were outstanding.

Stock option plans:

1. In January 1999, TAT adopted a stock option plan for its employees, directors and officers, whereby options to purchase
up to 500,000 Ordinary shares (out of which 402,500 stock options were granted to executives) were to be granted, at an
exercise price of $1.625 per share (which equaled the market price on the date of grant). All of the options have been
granted under the above plan. Under the terms of the plan, the options were fully vested as of the grant date. As of
December 31, 2008 7,500 were still outstanding. These options expired in January 2009.

The following table is a summary of the activity of TAT s stock Option plan:

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Number Weighted Number Weighted Number Weighted
of average of average of average
options exercise options exercise options exercise
price price price

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY (Cont.)
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Year ended December 31,

Outstanding at the

beginning of the

year 17,500 $ 1.625 17,500 $ 1.625 17,500 $ 1.625
Exercised (10,000) 1.625 - - - -
Forfeited - - - - - -
Expired - - - - - -

Outstanding at the
end of the year 7,500 $ 1.625 17,500 $ 1.625 17,500 $ 1.625

Exercisable options 7,500 $ 1.625 17,500 $ 1.625 17,500 $ 1.625

As of December 31, 2008, there are 7,500 options outstanding and exercisable, with a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.08 years. The aggregate intrinsic value of the stock options outstanding at December 31, 2008 was
$22.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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NOTE 10 SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY (Cont.)

c. Stock option plans (cont.):

2.

Limco Inc. entered into a share based compensation agreement with its Chief Executive Officer ( CEO ) during August,
2005. The compensation agreement is made up of 45,000 Phantom Stock options and stock options to be issued upon the
completion of an IPO by Limco Inc. The Phantom Stock options had a base exercise price of $6.37. At the date of exercise,
the CEO received a cash payment for the difference between the exercise price and the average price of TAT s stock price
for the 60 days preceding the exercise date. During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, Limco Inc. recorded
expenses of $325 and $348, respectively. At December 31, 2007, all of the Phantom Stock options had been exercised.

Effective as of July 19, 2007, Limco Inc. established an Incentive Compensation Plan, or the 2007 Plan, under which
Limco Inc. may issue options to purchase 600,000 shares of common stock. The options vest in three equal annual
installments, except for 66,000 options that vest in four equal semi-annual installments. Options generally expire five to
ten years from date of grant.

Compensation expense attributable to outstanding stock options was $175 and $390 for the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively. Compensation expense is recognized in the statement of income as an operating expense
based on the fair value of the option over the requisite service period. As of December 31, 2008, the total unrecognized
compensation cost related to non-vested stock awards was $781 and the weighted average period over which the cost is
expected to be recognized is approximately 1.6 years.

A summary of the 2007 plan activity for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, is presented below:
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Weighted
Weighted average
average contractual Aggregate
Number exercise life intrinsic
of options price remaining value (1)
(in thousands) in years (in thousands)
Granted 404 $ 11.00
Outstanding at December 31,
2007 404 $ 11.00 45 % 570
Granted 60 $ 5.88
Cancelled 153 $ 11.00
Outstanding at December 31,
2008 311 $ 10.01 437 $ S
Excisable at December 31, 2008 127  $ 10.09 425 % -

Options expected to vest at
December 31, 2008 184

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 10 SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY (Cont.)
c. Stock option plans (cont.):

(1)  The intrinsic value of a stock option is the amount by which the market value of the underlying stock on December 31,
2008 exceeds the strike price of the option. There was no aggregate intrinsic value at December 31, 2008 as Limco stock
price of $3.03 on December 31, 2008 was below the exercise price of all of the outstanding stock options. The aggregate
intrinsic value at December 31, 2007 was $570.

The weighted average grant date fair value of the stock options granted during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was
$2.63 and $5.38, respectively. There were 60,000 options granted during the year ended December 31, 2008.

The following table summarizes Limco s weighted average assumptions used in the valuation of options for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007:
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2008 2007
Weighted average expected stock price volatility 56% 62%
Weighted average expected option life (in years) 35 3.5
Average risk free interest rate 2.87% 4.96%
Dividend yield 0% 0%
Discount for post-vesting restriction N/A N/A

Limco uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the weighted average fair value of options. The volatility factor
used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model is based on historical stock price fluctuations. Due to the relative short period of
the time Limco has been public TAT has estimated a 0% forfeiture rate. The expected term of options is based on the simplified
method as allowed under Staff Accounting Bulletins (SAB) No s. 107 and 110 issued by the SEC. The simplified method assumes
the option will be exercised midway between the vesting date and the contractual term of the option. Limco is able to use the
simplified method as the options qualify as plain vanilla options as defined by SAB No. 107 and since Limco does not have
sufficient historical exercise data to provide a reasonable basis to estimate expected term. Expected dividend yield is based upon
Limco s historical and projected dividend activity and the risk free interest rate is based upon US Treasury rates appropriate for the
expected term of the options.

On February 25, 2009, subsequent to the balance sheet, Limco granted certain directors and senior management with options to
purchase 230,000 shares of common stock, for an exercise price of $2.16. The fair value of each option granted is $1.06,
calculated at the grant date.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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NOTE 10 SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY (Cont.)
c. Stock option plans (cont.):

4. On August 14, 2008, TAT s Board of Directors approved the grant of 65,477 unregistered options of Series A, B and C to
its Chief Executive Officer. Each options Series A, B and C vest over two, three and four years from May 19, 2008,
respectively, and expires three years after vesting. Each Series A, B and C option can be exercised for one ordinary share
0.9 NIS par value, for a consideration of $6.15 (adjusted for dividend distribution and other equity changes as defined in
the option grant terms), alternatively, the Chief Executive Officer can opt to receive TAT ordinary shares based on the
value of the appreciation over the exercise price.

The fair value of the stock options granted at the grant date, is $2.69, $2.9 and $3.15, for Series A, B a C, respectively, based on
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Series A Series B Series C
Number of options 21,826 21,826 21,825
Weighted average expected stock price volatility 60.05% 55.96% 54.57%
Weighted average expected option life (in years) 3.25 4.25 5.25
Average risk free interest rate 2.72% 2.94% 3.15%
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Compensation expense attributable to outstanding stock options was $47 for the year ended December 31, 2008. Compensation
expense is recognized in the statement of income as an operating expense based on the fair value of the option over the requisite
service period. As of December 31, 2008, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock awards was $144
and the weighted average period over which the cost is expected to be recognized is approximately 4 years.

d. Dividends:

On April 4, 2006, TAT s Board declared a dividend in the amount of $1,208, or $ 0.20 per share, for all of the shareholders of TAT
at the effective date May 16, 2006. The dividend was fully paid on May 30, 2006.

On September 2, 2007, TAT s Board declared a dividend in the amount of $2,617, or $0.4 per share, for all of the shareholders of
TAT at the effective date  October 16, 2007. The dividend was fully paid on November 6, 2007.

On March 11, 2009, subsequent to the balance sheet date, TAT s Board declared a cash dividend in the total amount of $3,500, or
$0.55 per share, for all of the shareholders of Company at the effective date  March 26, 2009. TAT paid the dividend on April 8,
2009.

On March 11, 2009, subsequent to the balance sheet date, Bental s Board of Directors approved the distribution of cash dividend in
the total amount of $3,150. The dividend was paid on April 6, 2009, out of which TAT received $2,205.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 11 NET INCOME PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share:

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Numerator:

Net income $ 4,268 $ 31,979 $ 6,066
Denominator:

Weighted average number of basic shares outstanding

during the year 6,546,055 6,344,041 6,042,671

Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options and warrants 20,194 63,463 120,354
Denominator for diluted net income per share 6,566,249 6,407,504 6,163,025
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Year ended December 31,

The weighted average number of outstanding options excluded from the calculation of diluted net earnings per share, due to their
antidilutive effect was 9,298 for the year ended December 31, 2008 and none for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

NOTE 12 INCOME TAXES

Measurement of taxable income under the Income Tax (Inflationary Adjustments) Law, 1985:

In accordance with the above law results for tax purposes are measured and reflected in real terms in accordance with the changes
in the Israeli Consumer Price Index (CPI). Under the Inflationary adjustments law (Amendment No. 20, 2008, hereafter the
amendment ), that was enacted in the Israeli Parliament on February 26, 2008, the provisions of the Inflationary adjustments law
will no longer apply to TAT in 2008 and thereafter. The amendment specifies transitional provisions regarding the discontinuance
of the provisions of the Inflationary adjustments law that have applied to TAT through the end of 2007.

Tax benefits under Israel s Law for the Encouragement of Industry (Taxation), 1969:

TAT isan industrial company , as defined by the law for the Encouragement of Industry (Taxes), 1969, and as such, is entitled to
certain tax benefits, which mainly consist of amortization of costs relating to know-how and patents over eight years, the right to
claim public issuance expenses, and accelerated depreciation.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 12 INCOME TAXES (Cont.)

NOTE 12

Tax benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 ( the Law ):

Certain expansion plans of TAT and its Israeli subsidiary Bental, have been granted an Approved Enterprise status, under the
Law. For some expansion programs, Bental have elected the grants track, and for one expansion program, TAT has elected to
receive its benefits through the alternative benefits track , waiving grants in return for tax exemptions. Pursuant thereto, the
increase in income from the date of commencement of each program which is the income of TAT derived from the Approved
Enterprise expansion program is tax-exempt for the first two years and eligible for reduced tax rates of 25% for a period of five
years thereafter (such reduced tax rates are dependent on the level of foreign investments in TAT), limited to twelve years from
commencement of production or fourteen years from the date of approval, whichever is earlier. As of December 31, 2008, the tax
benefits for these existing expansion programs will expire within the period of 2009 to 2021.

The entitlement to the above benefits is conditional upon TAT fulfilling the conditions stipulated by the abovementioned law,
regulations published thereunder and the letters of approval for the specific investments in approved enterprises . In the event of
failure to comply with these conditions, the benefits may be canceled and TAT may be required to refund the amount of the
benefits, in whole or in part, including interest (as for liens, see Note 9f). As of December 31, 2008, management believes that
TAT is meeting all of the aforementioned conditions.

The tax-exempt income attributable to the Approved Enterprise can not be distributed to shareholders without imposing tax

liability on TAT other than in complete liquidation. As of December 31, 2008, there is approximately $9,439 tax-exempt income
earned by TAT s Approved Enterprises . If the retained tax-exempt income is distributed to shareholders, it would be taxed at the
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corporate tax rate applicable to such profits as if TAT had not elected the alternative tax benefits track (currently 25%).

Income of TAT from sources other than the Approved Enterprises during the benefit period will be subject to tax at the effective
standard corporate tax rate in Israel, see Note 12d below.
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c. Tax benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 ( the Law ) (cont.):

On April 1, 2005, an amendment to the Law came into effect ( the Amendment ) and has significantly changed the provisions of the
Law. The Amendment limits the scope of enterprises which may be approved by the Investment Center by setting criteria for the
approval of a facility as an Approved Enterprise, such as provisions generally requiring that at least 25% of the Approved

Enterprise s income will be derived from export. Additionally, the Amendment enacted major changes in the manner in which tax
benefits are awarded under the Law so that companies no longer require Investment Center approval in order to qualify for tax
benefits.

However, the Law provides that terms and benefits included in any certificate of approval already granted will remain subject to
the provisions of the Law as they were on the date of such approval. Therefore, TAT s existing Approved Enterprise expansion
programs will generally not be subject to the provisions of the Amendment. As a result of the amendment, tax-exempt income
generated under the provisions of the Amendment, will subject TAT to taxes upon distribution or liquidation and TAT may be
required to record deferred tax liability with respect to such tax-exempt income. As of December 31, 2008, management believes
that TAT is meeting all of the aforementioned conditions under the Amendment.

d. Reduction of Israeli corporate tax rate:

On July 25, 2005, the Knesset (Israeli parliament) passed an amendment to the Income Tax Ordinance (No. 147), that provides,
among other things, the corporate tax rate to be gradually reduced to the following tax rates: 2004 35%, 2005 34%, 2006 31%,
2007 29%,2008 27%,2009 26% and 2010 and thereafter 25%.

e. U.S. subsidiaries:

U.S. subsidiaries are taxed based on federal and state tax laws. The effective tax rate for 2008, 2007, and 2006 was 41.48%,
35.6% and 36.8%, respectively.

f. Tax assessments:

TAT s income tax assessments are considered final through 2001.
Bental income tax assessments are considered final through 2006.
Limco income tax assessments are considered final through 2007.
TAT-GAL Inc. which was incorporated in 2008, has not received final tax assessment yet.
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NOTE 12 INCOME TAXES (Cont.)

g.

NOTE 12

Income tax reconciliation:

A reconciliation of the theoretical tax expense assuming all income is taxed at the statutory rate to income taxes as reported in the

statements of income:

Income before income taxes as reported in the
statements of income

Statutory tax rate in Israel

Theoretical tax expenses

Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting
from:

Tax adjustment for foreign subsidiaries
subject to a different tax rate

Reduced tax rate on income derive from
"Approved Enterprises" plans

Reduced tax rate on capital gain from sale of
shares of subsidiary company

Difference in basis of measurement for
financial reporting and income tax purposes

Tax in respect of prior years

Non-deductible expenses

Income taxes as reported in the statements of
income

Income before income taxes is comprised as follows:

Domestic (Israel)
Foreign (United States)

INCOME TAXES (Cont.)

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

6,888 $ 35962 $ 9,313

27% 29% 31%
1,860 10,429 2,887
671 532 399
(268) - -
- (6,400) -
(636) (870) (149)
77 (535) (28)
91 56 138

1,795 $ 3212 § 3,247

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

2,263 $ 27,897 $ 2,460
4,625 8,065 6,853

6,888 $ 35962 $ 9,313
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NOTE 12 INCOME TAXES (Cont.)

i. Income taxes included in the statements of income:

Current:
Domestic (Israel)
Foreign (United States)

Deferred:
Domestic (Israel)
Foreign (United States)

j- Deferred income taxes:

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

73§ 671 $ 652
1,845 2,862 2,507
1,918 3,533 3,159
(201) (330 72
78 9 16
(123) (321) 88
1,795 % 3212 % 3,247

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of TAT s deferred tax

liabilities and assets are as follows:

Deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Unrealized gains

Provisions for employee benefits and other temporary

differences
Tax loss carryforwards

NOTE 12 INCOME TAXES (Cont.)

December 31,
2008 2007
$ 72 $ 54
375 135
789 606
238 295
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December 31,
Deferred tax assets - short-term $ 1,474 $ 1,090
Deferred tax liabilities mainly derived from property
and equipment - long-term $ (1,086) $ (581)

As of December 31, 2008, TAT did not provide a valuation allowance in respect of deferred tax assets, since management
currently believes that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will be realized in the future.

TAT does not intend to distribute earnings of a foreign subsidiary aggregating $17,463 as of December 31, 2008, and accordingly,
no deferred tax liability has been established relative to these earnings. If these amounts were not considered permanently
reinvested, a deferred tax liability would have been required.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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NOTE 12 INCOME TAXES (Cont.)

k.

NOTE 12

Effective January 1, 2007, TAT adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes , an interpretation of SFAS 109, Accounting for Income Taxes . FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertain tax
positions. FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for how companies should recognize, measure, present and disclose in their
financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. Under FIN 48, tax positions shall
initially be recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the position will be sustained upon examination
by the tax authorities. Such tax positions shall initially and subsequently be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is
greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority, assuming full knowledge of the position
and all relevant facts. FIN 48 also revises disclosure requirements to include an annual tabular rollforward of unrecognized tax
benefits. TAT was required to apply the provisions of FIN 48 to all tax positions upon initial adoption with any cumulative effect
adjustment to be recognized as an adjustment to retained earnings.

As a result of adoption of FIN 48, TAT reclassified $147 from income tax payables to unrecognized benefits with no impact to
previously recorded retained earnings.

During 2008, Limco was audited by the Internal Revenue Service for the tax year ended December 31, 2006. It was the
determination of the Internal Revenue Service that Limco had deemed dividend distributions to TAT related to interest expense
charged during 2005, 2006 and 2007. Interest and penalties totaling $43 have been charged to income tax expense during the year
ended December 31, 2008. The audit is now closed and Limco believes that the only tax years open for audit is the year ended
December 31, 2008.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of recognized provision, as a result of the implementation of FIN 48, is as
follows:

Amount
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Amount
Balance at January 1, 2007 $ 147
Additions for tax positions of prior years 101
Benefits from tax positions of prior years (535)
Settlements with tax authorities 535
Balance at December 31, 2007 248
Additions for tax positions of prior years 189

Settlements with tax authorities 437)

Balance at December 31, 2008 $ -

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 13 SEGMENT INFORMATION
a. Segment Activities Disclosure:

Commencing August 18, 2008, as a result of the purchase of Bental, see Note 1 f, TAT manages its segments on a basis of four
reportable segments, as follows:

OEM Heat Transfer segment focuses on manufacture of heat transfer equipment, such as heat exchangers, precoolers and
oil/fuel hydraulic coolers used in aircraft, defense systems, electronic equipment and other applications. In addition TAT
manufactures aircraft accessories and systems such as pumps, valves, power systems, turbines, etc, and

OEM Electric Motion Systems segment focuses on manufacture of broad range of electric motion systems, including
motors, generators and other electro-mechanical motion systems.

MRO (maintenance, repair and overhaul) segment focuses on remanufacture, overhaul and repair of heat transfer
equipment and other aircraft components and of repair of APU s, propellers and landing gears.

Parts Segment focuses on sales of parts of APU s, propellers and landing gears.

TAT evaluates segment performance based on revenue and operating income. The operating income reported in TAT s segments
excludes corporate and other unallocated amounts. Although such amounts are excluded from the business segment results, they
are included in reported consolidated earnings. Corporate and unallocated amounts include executive level expenses and certain
expenses related to accounting and finance, human resources and information technology departments.

b. Segments statement operations disclosure:

The following financial information is the information that management uses for analyzing the segment results. The figures are
presented in consolidated method as presented to management.
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Cost related to selling and marketing and general and administrative for MRO and Parts are allocated based on revenues. This was
a change made in 2008. The segment results for 2007 and 2006 related to MRO and Parts have been restated to conform with this

allocation method.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTE 13 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

The following financial information is a summary of the operating income of each operational segment:

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Gross profit

Selling and
marketing expenses
General and
administrative
expenses

Operating income

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Gross profit

Year ended December 31, 2008

OEM -

OEM- Heat  Electric
Transfer Motion
Products Systems

MRO Parts

Corporate Eliminations Consolidated

$ 27,857 $ 9,758 54,276  $ 17,289 - $ (5.891) $ 103,289
21,058 7,845 43,664 13,922 - (5,926) 80,563
6,799 1,913 10,612 3,367 - 35 22,726
1,364 250 2,094 661 - - 4,369
4,342 713 3,466 1,024 2,862 - 12,407

$ 1,093 $ 950 5052 $ 1,682 $ (2,862) $ 35 % 5950

Year ended December 31, 2007

OEM

MRO Parts

Corporate Eliminations Consolidated

$ 23,489

17,891

49,392 $ 20,384

35,205 16,603

- 8

(4,561) $ 88,704

(4,492) 65,207

5,598

NOTE 13 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont.)

14,187 3,781

(69) 23,497
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Year ended December 31, 2007

Bultkgsinaexpenses 1,106 2,088 525 - - 3,719
General and
administrative
expenses 3,540 1,988 455 5,012 - 10,995
Operating income $ 952 $ 10,111 $ 2801 $ (5,012) $ (69) $ 8,783
F-46
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Year ended December 31, 2006
OEM MRO Parts Corporate Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues $ 22,110 $ 43,824 $ 15,197 - $ (3598 $ 77,533
Cost of revenues 16,271 32,214 12,835 - (3,681) 57,639
Gross profit 5,839 11,610 2,362 - 83 19,894
Selling and
marketing expenses 1,190 1,662 614 - - 3,466
General and
administrative
expenses 2,336 1,199 404 2,771 - 6,710
Operating income $ 2313 $ 8749 $ 1344 $ (2,771 $ 83 $ 9,718
c. The following financial information identifies the assets to segment:
As of December 31, 2008
OEM - OEM -
Heat Electric
Transfer Motion
Products Systems MRO Parts Corporate Consolidated
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As of December 31, 2008

Assets $ 39,822 §$ 19,170 $ 39480 §$ 7,118 $ 30,340 $ 135,930
Depreciation and

amortization 1,020 1,164 1,169 - - 3,353
Capital investments 1,096 767 1,697 - - 3,558
Goodwill - 1,185 4,814 - - 5,999

As of December 31, 2007

OEM MRO Parts Corporate Consolidated

Assets $ 40,704 $ 33299 $ 3522 $ 35882 $ 113,407

Depreciation and amortization 906 1,123 2 - 2,031

Capital investments 3,404 2,884 15 - 6,303

Goodwill - 4,780 - - 4,780
d. The following presents total revenues, based on the location of the end customers, for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007

and 2006 and long-lived assets as of those dates.

2008 2007 2006

Total Long-lived Total Long-lived Total Long-lived

revenues assets revenues assets revenues assets
Israel $ 17,077 $ 9,164 $ 7383 $ 6,758 $ 7,042 $ 4315
Asia 4,497 - 2,555 - 1,953 -
North America 57,472 6,023 56,554 5,169 51,292 2,920
Europe 19,510 - 18,484 - 15,210 -
Other 4,733 - 3,728 - 2,036 -

$ 103,289 $ 15,187 $ 88,704 $ 11,927 $ 77533 $ 7,235

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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NOTE 14 SELECTED STATEMENTS OF INCOME DATA

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

a. Financial income (expenses), net:

NOTE 14 SELECTED STATEMENTS OF INCOME DATA 59



Edgar Filing: ING Global Advantage & Premium Opportunity Fund - Form N-CSRS

Foisigneunteneay translation adjustments
Interest on cash equivalents, short-term

bank deposits and others

Financial expenses:

Bank charges

Interest on long-term loans

Foreign currency translation adjustments
Interest expenses on call option to minority
Others

b. Other income (expenses), net:

Gain from sale of shares and decrease in
holding of subsidiary company (1)

(Loss) Gain on sale of marketable securities
classified as available-for-sale

Other income

(1) See Note 1 d.

Year ended December 31,

$ 1257 $ 305 $ 372
1,420 1,402 349
2,677 1,707 721

(264) (142) (123)
(143) (640) (683)
(943) (220) (161)
(28) - -
(125) 4) (218)
(1,503) (1,006) (1,185)
$ 1,174 $ 701 $ (464)

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
$ - $ 26375 % -
(236) 34 38

- 69 21

$ (236) $ 26478 $ 59

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)
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NOTE 15 SUPPLEMENTAL CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

Warranty Inventory Account
provision Reserve Receivable
Reserves and Allowances
Balance as of January 1, 2006 $ 498 $ 2480 $ 396
Additions 278 - 43
Write-offs, net of recoveries - (836) (159)
Balance, as of December 31, 2006 776 1,644 280
Additions 8 124 10
Write-offs, net of recoveries - - (135)
Balance, as of December 31, 2007 784 1,768 155
Additions 215 268 180
Write-offs, net of recoveries (300) - (181)
Balance, as of December 31, 2008 $ 699 $ 2,036 $ 154
NOTE 16 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
a. Subsequent to December 31, 2008, Limco announced that it would relocate the operations of its Oklahoma subsidiary to the

location of its Piedmont subsidiary in North Carolina. Limco anticipates closing the Oklahoma operations in the third quarter of
2009. The goal of this relocation is to achieve significant annual cost savings. Limco entered into a lease for a new facility in
Kernersville, North Carolina of approximately 56,000 square feet, which will house its operations being relocated from
Oklahoma. The lease, which expires on November 1, 2011, provides for 2 renewal options, each for a five year term. The lease
provides for an annual rental fee of $36.

b. On April 3, 2009, TAT and Limco, its subsidiary company, announced that they have entered into a definitive agreement and plan
of merger pursuant to which TAT (which presently owns 61.8% of Limco s common stock) will acquire all of the publicly held
shares of common stock of Limco, pursuant to a stock for stock merger. Under the terms of the merger agreement, Limco s
shareholders will receive one half of an ordinary share of TAT for each share of Limco common stock they own. The exchange
ratio in the transaction represents a premium of 12% to Limco s closing share price on April 2, 2009 (the day before the
announcement of the merger). It also represents a premium of 24.3% to Limco s weighted average volume stock price on the
NASDAAQ global market over the 20 trading days prior to the announcement of the merger.

Following the merger, the former Limco shareholders (excluding TAT) will own approximately 27.8% of the ordinary shares of
TAT.

TAT TECHNOLOGIES LTD. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)
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NOTE 16 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Cont.)

It is also anticipated that following the merger TAT Industries, the controlling shareholder of TAT, which holds approximately
59% of the ordinary shares of TAT, as of the announcement day, will own approximately 42% of the ordinary shares of TAT and
Isal Investment Ltd., the beneficial owner of 71% of the ordinary shares of TAT (through direct holding and through its control in
TAT Industries) will be the beneficial owner of approximately 51% of the ordinary shares of TAT.

The transaction is subject to approval of Limco s shareholders, representing at least a majority of the outatanding shares of Limco
common stock and other customary closing conditions. TAT, which holds 61.8% of Limco s outstanding common stock, has
advised Limco s board that it intends to vote for approval and adoption of the merger. Approval of the merger by TAT s
shareholders is not required. It is anticipated that the closing of the merger will occur in the second or third quarter of 2009.

Upon consummation of the merger, Limco will operate as a wholly-owned subsidiary of TAT, maintaining its current
management.

C. Lawsuit against Limco

On April 8, 2009, a petition was filed in the District Court of Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma captioned Chris Gassen,
individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated (herein after The Plaintiff ) against Limco and its Directors (Shmuel
Fledel, Jacob Gesthalter, Michael Gorin, Giora Inbar, Avraham Ortal, and Eran Goren), hereinafter The Defendants . The action,
which purports to be on behalf of a class comprised of the public stockholders of Limco, seeks relief against Limco and its
Directors for alleged breaches of fiduciary duty and other violations of state law in connection with the merger. Plaintiff claims,
among other things, that the defendants are attempting to sell Limco by means of an unfair process and for an unfair price and that
defendants have failed to disclose all material information concerning the merger. Plaintiff is seeking to enjoin the consummation
of the merger, monetary damages, and an award of costs, including attorneys fees. The Company s management is of the opinion
that the action is without merit and intends to vigorously defend the claims.
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